





Looking back at the Bude Canal
Helen Harris

Editer’s note
This article s a version of a alk presented by the author ar the Summer Meeting
of the Society at Holsworthy on 25 June 2005,

Introduttion

Twao cenluries ago there had already been much talk in the parishes of north-gast
Cornwall and north-west Devon, and along the burder of the two counties, about
the prospects for a canal on which sea-sand and other goods could be brought
from the coast to the interior, and possibly even to ink with the tidat reach af the
Twmar in the south to provide a complete coast-to-coast waterway. But the
pressures of the Napoleonic War had intervened and it was to be another two
decades before the eventually agreed route became a reality.

Today, apart from the notable surviving and adapled structures at Bude,
remnants of the canal are not generally obvious, particularly on the Devon side.
Questions mmay therefore be asked. How far did the cunal suceeed in its original
intentions, and to what extent were advantages gained justiticd by all the problems
of its construction and working lile? What, if any, long-term benefits has it
bestowed?!

The Culmr Measures land of this fairly remote area of firming country lies
fieavy, acidic. wet and cold, much given to the growth of plants such as rushes,
meadow sweet and hemp wgrimony. In its natural state it is hard to work und
inhospitable to livestock. with the tendency for winter poaching of grassiand
necessitating curtailed grazing seasons. For centuries the value of applications of
sea-sand was recognised, both for raising afkalinity and to improve the texture of
the soil. Willimm Marshall, writing in 1796, had observed its use as “beyond
memory o tradition’, and Charles Vancouver, in 1808, also described the use of
sand from Bude. The practice is recorded even from the Fourteenth century, in the
records of Tavistock Abbey, when quantities were fetched from the coust by teams
of puckhorses and carried to the abbey lands at Werrington.

The need for lime to improve acid soils was supplied in other districts of the
South West through the use of burnt {imestone. in north Devon this could be
produced in kilns sited near limestone quarries. or along the coast where stone and
culm (an inferior forw of coal) was shipped in from south Wales, The Holsworthy
district of Devon and parts of north Cornwall were n less conveniett proximity.
However. the deticiency could be overcome through use of the vafuable coastal
sand. composed here largely of the crushed shells of sea creatures and having a
high content of calcium carbonate - approximately 30 per cent.

The latter halt of the cighleenth century was a time of awakening in many
areas of Britain, with certatn places sceing new developments in agriculture, and
canals already cutting their way through parts of the country. Not surprisingly,
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therefore, forward-looking landownets and others m lands of the South Wesl were
considering the prospects.

The building of the canal

The Arst proposal for a Bude Canal was put forward in 1774 by a Corishman,
John Cdyvean, an Act was obtained in that year and an extensive Hne surveyed by
Edmund Leaeh and John Box. With its hills and valleys this terrain is a (:hallcngvc
lor auy canal enginecr, and tive inclined planes, with re-loading of cargoes, were
Leach and Box’s suggestions lor negotiating the changes of level. Nothing came
of the scheme and in 1777 the engineer John Smeaton was consulted. He
suggested jost two ar three inclined planes and making use of lengths of river,
with locks and dams. Still no start was made and i 1784 the ten years of powers
awthorised by the Act had expired.

Nevertheless, turther ideas were to be produced. In 785 Fdmund Leach
revived his scheme, again including inclined planes but with boats caried in their
entirely on special vehicles, with lifting power provided partly by counterbalance
and partly by waterwheel, The 17905 saw renewed inlerest, strongly supported by
local landowner the 3" Earl Stanhope. In 1793 a report was received from
engineers John and George Nuttafl, who considered vartous suggested methods of
tifting: sleam engines and perpendicular lifts, horse-powered ropes and whimseys.,
and focks. All were considered unsuitable by the Nuttalls, who favoured the use of
‘fron-road rals” to Hnk stretches of the waterway. Lord Stanhope's plan was to use
smuall bouats, suspended on rail sections between pairs of wheels drawn by horses.
[deas were also put forward by the curcently visiting young Americar artist and
inspirational engineer Robert Fulton. His vision foresaw boats with wheels and
use of waterwheels and counterbalance on inclined planes,

All such matters were pushed into abeyance, however, by the ensuing war
with France. But iy 1814 plans were revived and in 1R17 Devon’s then surveyvor,
James Green, was invited 1o survey a line. He advocated o small canal, 3-ton
boats, and water-powered nclined plancs. His scheme also concerned the harbour
al Bude. for which he recommended a breakwater, with a4 sea fock and two
subsequent focks tor the canal. The 1olal cost he estimated at £128,000.

fn 1819 the Bude Harbour & Canal Company was formed, and a new Act of
Parliament obtained in the same year. Powers were given for the raising of
£95.000 in ES0 shares, with a Further £20,000 if necded. There lhad been some
pruning of Green’s plans, Work oflicially started on 23 July 1819 with the
ceremonial laying of the breakwater’s first stone and cutting of the first sod for the
canal by Lord Stanhope, whe had made the journcy specially from his seat in
Kent. As was customary, the event was marked by immense enthusiasm and
celebration by all levels of society in the neighbourhood in what was a gala day at
Bude.

The eutting and construction procceded simultancousty on ditferent sectians
with farge numbers of men employed. By 1821 the work was well advanced but
the company had become overstretched financially; purchases of land had proved
more costly than expected and other expenses had arisen, as well as some



uncertainties about future prospects. Nevertheless, by 8 July 1823 the canal was
declared ready for trade to Holsworthy, and south as tar as North Tamerton (Fig,
by, On that day there was an officiad opening, with boats arriving at the
Holsworthy wharves wul o provession into the town where the band played, the
chiurch bells rang, and there was teasting.

Although future prospects now seemed bright, funds had run low, and in the
same month the company applied o the Exchequer Loan Commissioners for a
government loan o £20,000 (later reduced o £16,000) to cnable completion of the
work cluding the branch south towards Laumcesion. This southern branch
became eperable in 1825, by which time the 1o1a] cost of the work amounted to
just undder £1200,000,

The total length of the canat from the Bude shore to terminal points and to the
reservoir - sited (o the north of the main tmnk, wis 35% miles. The rise from sea
level to sumnrit (un the Holsworthy line) was 4338, with a drop on the Launceston
stretch from an intermediate 3750t to 203t The chunges ol level were
accomplished by three locks at the seaward end. and six inelined plancs.

The system of inclined planck constifuted the most remarkable aspect of the
Bude Canal’s construction, There were more than on any other Brilish conal
before or since, and the mechaniestwere extremely mgenious, All were worked by
water power, five of them by waterwheels sited at the top of the planc, while the
sixth - the great one at Hobbacott - was powered by the weight of two cnornmous
buckets, each comtaining 13 tans of water, which descended altemately in wells
2251 deep (the water here being discharged into the lower Jevel of canaly. The
boats. which were fitted with wheels, artached to chaing, were raised out ot the
canal and travelled on double sets of rails along the incline (Figs 2 and 3},

Atter entering Bude Harbour, sheltered by the new breakwater, vessels passed
through the sea lock, constructed 38yd i length and |lyd in breadth (Fig, 4).
Ships of 300 tons could be accommodimed i the basin with its two wharves,
where cargoes could be transferred as required into barges and tub-boats, Tub-
boats were also loaded here with sand, transterred from the beach by narrow-
gauge railway. Beyond the basin the first U4 mile stretch of canal, to Helebridge,
was of barge width, 4t Gin deep, and included two locks which each raised the
level by 5ft 6in. Only the 20t by 3ft 6in tub-boats could continue beyond
Helebridge, from where the canal narrowed to a width of 101t at the bottom and
L9ft at the top, with o depth of 341

The first of the inclited plancs was reached at Marhamehurch, where (he
boats were vatsed 12 over o distance of 8366 Two miles further atong came
Hobbacott, with the boats travelling 9354t over the 2250 rise. 1Y miles beyond
this. at the Red Post junction, the main trunk continued castwacds, crossing the
upper River Tamar by an arched agueduct at Burmsdon, with a further place at
Veabind (58ft rise over 500ft). The cimal then continued on a winding course to
the terminal Blagdonmoor wharf, 2% niles north-east of the town of Holsworthy.
A little east of the top of Vealund plane the canal was joined by the feeder amn
from the reservoir, now called Lower Tamar Lake (Fig. 53, Back at Red Post the
Launceston branch led away southwards, with descending planes at Merrilield
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Figure 1: The Bude Canal as buikt,






(all of a0lt, lenpth 3608). at Tamerton {fall of 5911, length also 360f) and
Wernagton (Gall of ST fength 25410, The southern terminus was at Druxton, 3
wiles north of Canneestan.

Ldeas andd designs for mclined planes developed by Robert Fulton (who died
before the canal’s construction ) were used i the work by James Green, Planes and
witter power had advantages in being cheaper and more cconomical of water than
locks, and, where most of the traftic was in-bound, more practical than
counterbatancee, But on the Bude Canal they were the subject of frequent troubles,
Ingenuity wax not lully malched by the actual construction, and avaifable
matertals were otten ansuitable tor the strain. Mishaps such as breaking chains
were frequent, causing delays and consequent loss of trade, leading to financial
difficultics. These and repais neeessary 1o the breakwater caused problems in
repayment of the loan.

A erists came in 1838, when in a violent storm the breakwater was washed
away, The nccessily for its rebuilding demanded further negotiations over the
foan. With the Commissioners agreeing (o certain conditions, rebuilding of the
breakwater procceded over the next year. From this time receipts on the canal
steadily improved. In 1841 income from 1olls reached its highest level, and the
reclucing debt was paid oft in 1870, Not before 1876, bowever, was (he first
dividend of 10 shillings per £100 shave paid ol

Ry this time, however, the canal was feeling the effects ol railways, In 1864
Launceston was connected by rail with Tavistock and Plymouth, which coaused
loss of trade on the Launceston line, Then, in 1879, the London & Soulth Western
Railway reached Holsworthy from Okchampton: and olter an initial boost (his
caused a further continuous steady dechine,

Maintenance of the canal was still comtinued into the 18805, buat with
reductions of expenses wherever possible. Proposals to extend the railway from
Holsworthy to Bude added to the gloom. The compuny felt that the time had come
to wind up and realise assets. There was much wavering amongst the company’s
members, but it was eventually deeided w abandon the canal and o try and scil it
possibly for its water supply.

After a protracted period of deliberations, in 1891 an Act was obtained for the
abandonment of the infand length, with continued maintenance of other sections
and of the harbour and reservoir - the water was to be used for supplying Bude.
The branches were subsequently closed and property sold oft. Discussions
regarding the remainder deggged an. The compuny was anxious o sell, but there
were negotiations to resolve over the water supply, and other considerations;
evenhatlly agreement was reached for sale of the essental parts w the local
council st Stratton and Bude for £8,000. An Act tor this was obtained i 1901 and
the canal hauded over in 1902, £4 per share was finally paid to shareholders.

Soon aftterwards Stratton and Bude Urban District Council construeted s
waterworks near Vealand, using the reservoir and feeder arm in a system that
survivad untit the 1970s. Most of the remaining trunk became derelict and was
largely sold off to farmers. The lower two miles. including the sea lock, have been
maintwined, the other two locks stopped and concreted.

And so. what can be our assessment of the Bude Canal's success and legacy?
While not producing any tinancinl suceess for its promoters, certainly during its
heyday the canal brought some advontages to the farming hinteriand. Although
carly estinates for sand were never attained, figures show that appreciahic
tonnages of commodities were carried on the canal between 1837 and 1890
These included culm in the carly vears tmmsimum 1,796 tons in [¥38), coal
throughout the period tmaximum 3,561 tons i 1R78). sand (maximum 54,016
tons in 1838} and other goods (2,704 tong in 1890}, An agricultucal expert noted in
the mid twentieth century that it was still possible 1o kieatity locations where the
beneits brought by cavlier applications of sand on tarmland were appacent.

[ the twenty-fiest century remaining features of the Bude Harbour and Canal
construction hequeath other advantages. At Bude, the existence ot the breakwater,
former wharl areas, and towpath alang the lower length have great amenily value
and interest for buth the resident papulation and visitors, Boats can be brought
into the basin, and the initiab steeteh of canal used tfor water activities. Farther
inland, there are some stectehes of the former canal where footpaths give access,
but much of the voute 5 owned privately and absorbed back nto farmiand. The
sites and slopes of inelined planes can be diseerned to a cortain extent, and several
of the former company s buildings still exist, although now usually adapted and
aftered. Lower Tamar Lake is conserved as a mature reserve and for coarse lishing,
The canal’s working days are, however, but a memory.!

Notes and references

L. The Bude Canad by Helen Harris and Monica Ellis was first poblished in
1972, A facsimtle editton was produced in 2004, As poted in their book,
sources included: the Journal of the House of Lords, 1774 enginecrs’ reports
in the British Museum and in Devon and Cornwall Record Offices:
newspaper tepotts in the Exeter Flving Posr and West Briton: papers ol the
canal company (minutes. reports, letter books, cash books): the Rupors of the
Exchequer Loon Commissioners, 1838; a journal of the canal company’s
inspector compiled during construction: the diary of James Sleemun, on (he
staft of the company at Hobbacott, during the canal's later working years, am
various other publications.
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Archaeology above ground level: the archaeologist’s
contribution to the study of historic buildings

Stuart Blaylock

Editor’s note

This article 1s a version of a lecture delivered at the Annual Conference and
General Mecting of the Devon History Society on 30 October 2004, The paper has
been modificd by the speaker tor eproduction in The Devon Historian. The aims
of the lectwre, the author notes, were to define what is involved in the
archacologival study of buildings, and to illustrate the practice by means of recent
examples of such work in Devon.

Introduction

Archacology is invariably associated in the pepular wmind with excavation, and
with remote periods. Most people will picture archacology as Ancient Egypt, a
classical temple, or a Roman mosaic, or at the very best as a prehistoric earthwork
site stich as o barrow or hillfort. Hethey have scen mrehacologists at work, or have
{as is increasingly the case) followed one of the popular elevisian archacology
series. they may even expect to see people working on what appears to be a
building site, or even worse in cramped conditions at the bottom of a muddy hole.
All these environments are acknowledged as the natural habitat of the
archacologist. What people generally do not expect to see is an archacologist high
up on scaffolding, with nu trowel or shovel in sight. This is the realm of the go-
called 'buildings archacologist’.

The belief that mchacology stops at ground level is well entrenched, wilh the
associated implication that anything above ground level has no archacologicnl
dimension to its material fabric and is not the proper concern of archacologists. This
point was well expressed iy a lectuee given by Richard Morris at a conference on
*Buildings Archacolowy ™ held at Chesler in 1993:

{ otten reflect that ‘standing buildings® is tautological. Why not simply “buildings’?

We know Lhe imswer, of course: “standing’ is an antidote {0 the mindset of the mid-

later twenticth ecentwry, when archaeology was unmturally narrowed 0 mean

“digging’. Fven wday there are some who talk as if buildings ure an add-on to

archaeology rather than comprised by it. There are reasons tor that. not the least of

thew the sehizophrenia within our conservation legislation
The last point is something that now appears to be being addressed. and members
heard maore of this in Peter Beacham's talk in the aftermueon ol the Annual Conference
last October,

There is also, T am sorry to say, a problem about standing boildings within the
archaeological profession. Many archacologists somehow think that the swdy of
standing buildings is peripheral to their interests and beyend their competence. 1
would argue that {as in the passage just quoted) excavators are dealing, by and large,
with the remaing of standing buildings, aund should automatically think in terms of the
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standing <imension. Equally | would argue that an ability to analyse standing Ebric is
integral to the archacologist’s irmoury of methads and technigues.

The detinition of 'archaeological' analysis of historic buildings

What do we mean by an archaeological approach to the study of a building as
opposed to, say, an architectural or structural mmatysis? Naturalty there is bound to be
some overlap between these categories. | would suggest that archacological analysis
is more a matter of the approach than necessavily a ditference i result, Thus it would
include systematic observation of the fabric, sometimes preceded by some physical
investigation or stripping ot the fabric: systematic recording, usually based on
clevation as well as plan drawings, and probably including o systematic written
clement. The stuge of analysis would include an unpicking' of the building,
consisting of the weroval (il only on paper) of the latest features st ond the analysis
of he Fabrie 'layer by layer' and phase by phase, even though one might be dealing
with material all in one physical plane. A varicty of soplusticated  surveying
techniques is now often drawn on for the recording of historie buildings. but at its
simplest this can ke place without any claborate equipment.” Simple drawings and a
concise written account can be achicved quickly and economically. But it does
require the distinctive archacological approuctt: te consider a building as a composite
artefact’ and analyse, or unpick. 1t

Origins of the methods

There is much to be said for the view that the aichacological study of buildings goes
back to the very carlicst antiquarian researches, and especially the drawings and
records of men such as John Aubrey (1626-97), and Wenceslas Hollar (1607-77),
The pionecrs of accurate observation and recording ol buildings were all early
exponents of what we would now call “buildings archacology': men such as John
Carter (1748-1817), whose magniticent folio engravings of ceclesiostical archutecturs
for the Socicty of Antiquaries bave still not been bettered. the profific Juhn Buckler
(U770-1851) and his son John Chessell Buckler (1793-1894), John Britton (1771~
1837}, Juln Kendall of Exeter (1768/9-1829), the author of a treatise vn gothic
architecture with beautifully engraved plates of details drawn from Excter Cathedral,
Robert Whllis (1800-73), and John Henty Parker (1806-84). Locally several of the
prominent local urchitects of the later pineteenth century were carcful observers of
ancient architecture, notadly Edward Ashworth (1814-96) and John Hayward (1808-
91), as can be seen in thelr swrviving drawings and in the published papers of the
Exeter [Mocesan Architectural Society, in which both were active participants.

Many of the present-day methods of obscrvation und rcearding go back to the
distinguished archaeologists. architects and architcotural  historians of the
nineteenth and early twentieth century: W.H. St John Hope (1834-1919), W.R.
Lethaby (1857-1931) and John Bilson {1836-1943} being notable examples. The
mid-twentieth century looks in retrospeet a distinctively lean patch in the
development of the subject, perhaps partly becnuse the growth of “below-ground’
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archscology in response to wartine  damage and  later twentieth  century
development, and the expansion of the subject inte areas such as medieval
archacology, velipsed the more traditional arcas of interest in stukling buildings
and ecclesiastical architeclure. Notable exceptions to this include Beyan O'Neil
{1905-34) and Martyn Jope (1915-96). Locally, Arthur Everett (F889-1979) has a
strong cloim te be considered one of the founders ot the study of standing
buildings in Devon. beginming in the 1930s, when his “Save the Priory’ campaign
with Ethel Lega-Weekes resulted in the preservation, study and partial restoration
ol St Kathering™s Priory al Polsloc.” Alter the wat, snd through the 19508 Everett
virtaally single-handedly, and in his spare time. studied and recorded  in
meticulous draowings, notes and photographs, namy buildings  threatened by
demolition and refurbishment. Bul the subject as 11 now stands also owes nuuch to
developments in archacological recording in the 1960 and 7is. The combined
excavation and labric recording between 1971 and 1984 of St Mary's Church,
Deerhurst, Gloucestershire, by o team led by Phitip Rahtz, ranks as one of the
mos! successful amel influential projects of this kind,? especially in its (for the
time} innovative deployment of below- and  above-ground  cvidence  in
combination, und of the presentation of recording and analysis o a very full
sequence of drawings. Similarly the presentation of the standing elevation ol the
north wall of the nave of St Oswald's Priory, Gloucester was very influential on
my own developing ideas of the presentation of standing fabric analysis,’ Other
luminaries at this time include Maurice Barley, John Hurst, Richard Morris, and
Harold Tavlor, continuing today with inspired work by, brer alia, Warwick
Rodwelt and Panl Brury. A conference on building recording held at Chester in
1993 represents a snapshot view of the discipline at that time. The published
proceedings provide a useful overview of the ways in which archagologists engage
with buildings, as well as several fascinating general essays.” The claim that
‘Buildings Archacology” was invented at this conference’ is, however, over-
ambitious.

Beackgrowund to the local study and recording of buildings

Devon is fortumate in having many extremely knowledgeable and eminent scholars of
vernacular buildings: Nat Alcock, Michael Laithwaite, Peter Beacham and Peter
Child have all played distinguished parts in the development of this subject.” Locally
the wehaeolagical study of buildings was pioneered by Chris Henderson, who played
a crugcial formative role in the development of building recording in Exeter in the
19705 by seeing its value at @ time when Few did, by committing the Archaeological
Field Unit to the recording ol threatened buildings, and by including vecording of
stuncding fabrie as an integral aspect of the Unit's excavation work, The now tamous
example of the recording of 38 North Street by John Thorp prior to and duting its
demolition was a significant carly example ol this commitment to a new and evolving
subject. and my own first venlure in Exeter at Polsloe Priory took place as a result of

this commitment. Significant contributions were also made by Bob Higham and John
Allan at Okehampton Castle, and by others elsewhere.”

The impenrtance of drawing
[n trying to think through the implications of what is crucial wxd individual 1o the
archacological stady of buildings to compile the list given carlier, T came (o the
conclusion that dvawing as an integral part of the analysis was one of the most eritical
factors. Many people have said to me in the past ‘T could never do that, 1 cannot
draw’, or * have no talent’. Rather than requiring a particular talent, | would argue
that an ability to draw requires some basic (and very simple) training. but above all
application. sclf” discipline, and an understanding of what is required of a record
drawing. The very process of drawing helps in observation wad interpretation, as |
hope will becorne clear in one or two ol ny ease studies later on.™
Richard Harris aptly expressed the importance of drawing in the context of
recording buildings in a section of his essay entitled "Drawing and Understanding' in
the proceedings of the Chester conference:
Fhave to draw inorder to see. OFcouese Lan take a look round o building and suggest an
mterpretation without nriking disswings, but | sever see the buliding clearly until my
observations lirve been teanpered with the discipline of nuking a drawing on paper. |
usedd o think that this was a posonal fdling bet as [ have repeatedly found that
mitetpeetiations pubbstcd by people swho do it disp wend w beeome inaceurate as soon as
the building hecomes tricky. [Huwve came to the conclusion that it ts reasonable to assert
hat. as a0 general qule. drawing o building caretudly 15 a discipline thar assists
interpretmion.”!
Harris s algo interesting on the subijeet of the use of dizswing as a part of the process
of nbservalion: Ins parsing’ of a building, in the way tht ok fashioned schoolboys
parsed sentences (and we will shortly “parse” Dymock chureh and Exeter city wall), is
also instructive. ™
The ehurch of St Mary, Dymock, Gloucestershire provides a sonderfully clear
speciien illustration as an example of how the fabeic of o building con be analysed.
A mmber of discrete phases mthe masenry of the south elevation of the chancel will
be casily visible to most observers (Fig. Py These comprise an carly Normuan phase of
masonry of Jarge blocks with pilaster buttresses, decorated steing course, blank
areading 1o the cast (right) with tympana fitled with diagonally-set blocks, and the
beginning ol an castern apse that does not survive, A twelfth century phase {dated
e 1120-1140),% here represented by rebnilding above the string course in the centre-
lefl section, ineludes vound-headed windows (now blocked); the chancel was altered
in the carky fourteentl cennry, with the insertion of a two-light window with cnsped
Y-tracery and the demolition of the apse and rebuilding of the east end (extreme
righty. A late medieval window {left) is cul into by a larger modermn window (centie
felt), and associated brick blocking. Most buildings will not display their different
phases quile so readily as this, however, and & more subtle example is provided by
section of Roman fabric in Excter eity wall, at Quay Lane (Fig. 2),
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would now be done by photogrammetry and computer-aided  graphics, the
principles ol the techniques pioneered (werty years or more ago are largely still
valid. Once drawings had been produced. block-by-block records of stone types,
repairs, mottars and paint traces were compiled to feed into phased and
interpretative deawings.™

4345 High Street, Fxeter

This group of three houses in the middle of Exeter High Street (formerly Pinder &
Tuckwell, now the premises of Portman Building Seciety) offers an interesting
exanple of the developing understanding of domestie architecture in the city. A
medieval roof in one building (No. 44) was known from a photograph taken in the
1930s, although it was not known to survive, and in his classic study of Excter
houses Portman appears to have thought that Nos 43-44 were entirely modern,”
Recording of this building by Keith Westcott in 1993 during alterations revealed
that five trusses of this roof did survive, although cut away and supported by a
variety of modern structures, Most recently, in 2004, a thoroughgoing conversion
of alt three houses provided the opportunity for detailed recording of the buildings
by John Allan and Richard Parker, This confirmed details of carlier observations
and revealed that Nos 43-44 were built as a pair of late medieval houses with
stone outer walls and a timber-framed party wall, very much in the way of the
much better-preserved (and rather later) Nos 41-42 to the north east (now Laura
Ashley). No. 44 preserved a series of phases of the fifteenth/early sixteenth
century when an open hall with an open hearth oceupied the space set back from
the street, with a shop with chamber above on the frontage. This discovery is of
great importance for the development of housing in Exeter, as very few smoke-
blackengd roofs are known in the historic city. Several phases in the late
sixteenth/early seventeenth century, when the halt was enclosed and floored and
the roof trusses painted, were also documented, The south-westernmost house, No.
43, occupied a narrow plot representing the north-east end of a street connecting
High Street to Cathedral Close (Lamb Alley) until it was filled in in stages during
the sixteenth century. The highly ornamented side elevation of the house to the
south-west {No. 46, an early sixteenth century house originalty open onto Lamb
Alley) was seen and recorded in detail.

Two related points about this sequence of work deserve emphasis: one is the
fragility of surviving evidence, small and individually insignificant opportunities
can yield important information, and no epportunity to make observations should
be neglected. The second concerns the incrementat value of such observations: the
significance of something observed during work at one stage can swddendy be
realised with further observations, sometimes years later. This point will be
developed in the next case study.

Exeter City Walfl

The Rowman and medieval city wall of Excter has been widely investigated by both
excavation and survey. A case study of the developmett of understanding of one
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section of wall through a number of stages of study and recording will illustrate how
the process of observation and analysis can itself contribute to the understanding of a
building, as well as emphasising the importance of drawing (above). The section in
guestion s in Northernhay Gardens, to one side and the other of Athelstan’s Tower
(Fig. 4} This scction contains well-preserved Roman facework and fabric and
eacthworks associated with Rougemont Castle. founded by Witliam [in 1068, Three
miain stages of work have taken place. The section was first deseribed, and illustrated
in a sketch elevation, by Tan Burrow in his pioncering study ol the wall™ Then, in
1988 and 1991 1 described this section in detatl, although still without any drawing,
while producing a fabric survey of the cily wall® This led to the realisation that the
Roman facework survived to almost the full height of the wall to the southwest of
Athelstan’s Tower, and that this was capped off by the remains ol a crencliated
parapet in white Triassic sandstone. There was no way of dating this at the time, and
it was suggested that i might belong to the Clivit War pertod. Nevertheless the
inlerest of this arca was identificd and the section was proposed for more detailed
recording. The opportunity arose in 19934, when a study of the wall was funded by
English Heritage, and full stone for stone drawings of the streteh of wall between the
rear of the castle and the archway between Northernhay Gardens and Rougemont
Gardens were prepared by Richard Parker and Aidan Matthews. These led to the
recognition of a further stage of sandstone parapet buried by early Norman masonry
associated with the castle, and thus providing a stratigraphic means of dating the
whole {ength of parapet to the late Saxon period. The discovery that Exeter retains
some late-Saxon defensive masonry in its wall is exceptionally important, and has
considerable unplications for the dating of similar masonry in other sections of the
cireuit. Other observations concerned the survival of the Roman wall in this avea, the
stages by which the castle was constructed in the carly Norman period (particularly
the survival of carthworks from the carliest castle outside the wall, to be scen today as
the scarps surrounding the wall in Northernhay Gardens), and the extent of repairs ot
Civil War date.

Understanding of the significance of the many phases ol work represented in
this section has come gradually as more observations have been made, more
tetatled drawings compiled, and more thought gone inte the mterpretation of
findings. The close scrutiny that comes with the making of detailed drawings pays
dividends in terms of the quality of observation. This again illustrates the
incremental value of individual observations.

Bowhill, Dunsford Road, Exeter

Bowhill s a comprehensively studied building comprising a combination of
below-ground excavation and above-ground fabric recocding carried out in the
context of a repair programme by English Hleritage between 1977 and 1995, One
of the key messages of Bowhill is that the understanding gained by the study ot
the building governed its repair and presentation. This was applied history, used
to nform planning and decision-making. As such it forms something of an
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and simpler recording projects, | have tried to identify the distinctive aspects of an
archacological  approach  to  building  recording, and to  iHustrate  what
archacologists actually do in relation to historie buildings that singles them out
from other disciplines with similar or overlapping interests, such as documenltary
historians, architcelural historians and conservationists.
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The 'Great Sir Thomas' Acland and his Norwegian
namesake; Part I: the establishment of the Acland-
Fellefscn connection

Keith G. Orrell

Introduction

The Acland family 15 probubly the oldest fmily s Devon o claim a direet
descent through the male line.' The family settled in this part of England in the
twelfth century with Hugh de Avcalen being recorded as owning land. Acland,
meaning Acca's lane', refers to o Saxon Acca who owned o sizeable estate at
Landkey near Barnstaple in North Devon. Killerton House, in the parish of
Broadclyst ncar Exeter, was bought in the carly seventeenth century by fohn
Acland, the owner ot the sdjoining manor of Columb John, and the amalgamation
of these two propertics formed the nucleus ol the future Killerton estale.

The family earned the hereditary title of baronet 1 1644 by their loyally to
King Charles I during the Ciwvil War, when Celumb John was offered as a safe
garrisom tar the King. The Hirst baronet. Sic Tohn Acland {¢. 1591-1047), had three
sons who formed the foundation of the strang male line of the Aclands. The
seventeenth and ¢ighteenth centuvies saw the tamily flourish steadily from the First
through to the nimh buroneteies. The ninth baronet, Sir Thomas Dyke Acland
{(1752-1794), married Henrietta Hoare, the only daughter of Sir Richard Hoave, a
wealthy banker from Mitehwm in Surrey. They had five children, Thomas (Tony)
(1787-1871) being the eldest of the brothers and sisters who all grew up logether
in Holnicote in North Devon,

Tom Acland: the early vears (1787-1806)

Tom was born in 1787 but his father, the ninth baronet, died tragically oaly
seven years later, leaving His mother with the heavy responsibility of bringing up
both him and his brothers and sisters in the best possible way. Whilst having a
devated wite in Henvietta, the nintl baronet had had a somewhat reckless style of
living that had left the fanly esttes with many debts. Coming from a banking
family Flenvictta was much more careful aver financial matters, and Yom's inoney
was placed i the hands of trustees vnatit he camie of age. To economise on
expenditore Henrietta continued to live in Helnigote, feaving Killerlon House
empty. However, wilhin a year of widowhood she became happily remunied 1o
Captain Matthew Fortescue, RN, and soon presented him with two sons to add to
hee already large family,

Heardetta had a very dominant personality and was determined that Tom
should grow up well fitted to take his proper place in the world. She was
determined he woukd have sound religions principles, be punctual and <iligent,
avoid debt and drink, and cultivate an ovutward manner fit for any society. When
he way eight vears old he was sent away to a private school in North London, and
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situaied south-west of Christiana. 10 oppears ikely that, given his forthrightness of
character, Tom would have protested against the existing sovereignty of Denmark
over Norway, a slate of affairs much resented by the Norwegians themselvey, with
the result that the Norwegian ofticials granted release of their sympathetic British
prisouets after only two months, and allowed them safe passage home via
Swaeden!

Much o the relief of hus fannly and friends Tom and his companions arrived
back at Holnicote in January 1808 with much to relate and a portfobo of sketches,
some of whicl were subsequently exhibited at the Royal Academy in London. He
had made a number of riends in Norway with whom he continued to correspoud,
and had left o most generous gift of £500 for the reliel of sufferers from the war,

This episode in hiy life veflected many aspects of Tam's personality, his
impaticnt cnergy, a greal fove ol adventure, a somewhal wekless atitude towards
financial matters, seant regard for the feclings and advice ol others, but, on the
other hand. 4 very sincere concern tor the underdog and those in need. and the
gourage to speak freely cven when it put himself in danger.

Tem's marriage wnd turther travelling (1808- 1809)

On 7 Aprit 1808 Tom and Lydia*were maried and so commenced forty-cight
years of married partnorship. Lydia, being a member of the Hoare banking family
from Mitcham Grove in Surcey, had been brought up in close contact with the
austere Frangelical cirele. that, under Willlam Wilberforee, fought for the
abolition ol the sluve trade, o canse that was to featwre prominently in her
husband’s later political Hie. She was o person of handsome presence, great
physical and menal strength, and possessed w congiderable mustcal takeat. In
anticipation of her marciage o Tom, a chamber organ had been installed the
previous year { E8073 iw what became the Music Room of Killerton FHouse,

On coming of age in 1808 Tom (now Sir Thomas) inhertied an income of
£10,000 per year and becane vesponsible tor all the Acland estates. [t was decided
that he and Lydia should live at Killerton even though. alter thirty years of
peglect, it was rather dilapidated. New furnishings were chosen by bis mother and
the agent. Julin Veitch. As the latter was also a respected landscape consultant and
nurserynnn he wis given the additionat responsibility of planning an imaginative
scheme for the whole of the gavden and pack.

In the spring of 180Y their eldest child was born and named Thomas Dyke
Actand after his tather. Thus was the start of eighteen yewrs of child-bearing for
Lady Actand. during which time ten chifdren were born. She was physically very
robust and despite her numerous pregrancics was able o accompuny her busband
on their many ‘peregrinalions’ over the next twenty years or s, As recreation from
his managenent dutics of the estate Sir Thonas relied on sketehing and travel (by
horsehack, carriage or sailing boat).

By the summer of 1812 they bad two sons, Tom (aged three) and Arthue
{aged one), but this did not deter them from travelling und, taking young Tom
with than, they visted Southern Ireland and thenee 1o Sceotland. reaching as Lar
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narth as St. Kilda, the remote island on the cdge of the Quter Hebrides. Here
iydia was reputed to be the fiest 'lady’ to land on the island! Their return journey
through Scotland included an asceat of Ben Nevis, bul it is not known whether
young Tom accompanied them!

Sir Thomas Dyke Acland, Member of Parliament (1812-1820)

On his return to Killerton Sir Thomas was invited to stand as a Momber of
Parliament for Devon, and on 15 October 1812 was clected as such, Life now had
to tit around the parltamentary sessions, but this was not 100 onerous as the House
rarely sat between July and February! For six months of the year e and Lydia
were able to spend time at Killerton or Holnicote or travel abroad, while during
pavhiamentacy sessions they moved to London taking a hovse or staying at a
family hotel such as Grillion's in Albemarle Street. where the political dhning club
met,

Sir Thomas was very much a political reformer by nature, at times not
following the Tory Parly line. He was particularly outspoken on humanitarim
issues such as Catholic emancipation, the state of London prisons and, drawing on
his personal experience, caxing the Norwegian blockade,

In 813 Sir Thomas revisited Norway and travelled again to Trondheim
where he met Johann Christian Tellefsen.” The latter was a central figwre in the
musical life of Trondhetm, being the organist of Nidarosdomen (Trondheim
Cathedral), and an organ builder and instrument dealer by protfession. Sir Thomas
met Tellefsen in The Royal Norwegian Socicly of Sciences and Letters building m
Trondheim. where the latter was the Hbrarian, They becume firmt friends, sharing a
contmon interest in humanilovian and religious matters” This friendship was to
have very significant consequences.

By the summer of 1814 Nupoleon had been captured, the war scemed aver
and the continent was open again to avellers, This prompted (he Ackads (Sir
Thomas, Lady Lydia and five-year-old Tom) to cesume their travels. this time to
Vienna where an important Peace Congress was being held. Sir Thomas was
actively engaged in the Congress, and both he and Lydia made many new [riends
including Archduke John of Austria, While there Lydia learnt Lalian and took
singing lessons, music being her main cecreation,

When (he family returned home in February 1815 they found England in the
tidst of a post-war depression. During the period {815-18 Sir Thomas gained a
reputation as an active parliamentanan and fluent speaker. but at the gencral
election of [RIR he was defeated unexpectedly (Fig. 2).

However, i 1820, following another geneval election precipitated by the
King's death, he was re-clected. The political climate hud now changed to a more
relormist mood that was more congenial to luny, and he continued to strengthen
his reputation as a moderate Tovy,






their threc-maonth stay they became purticulanly Iviendly with Baron Bunsen, the
Prussian ambassador, Lydia, having ber music with her, often hacl the distinction
of playing and singing before the great Danish neo-classical sculptor Bertel
Thorwaldsen, who worked in Rame. Two terracotta roumdels by the sculptor
entitled Might and Moveing were subsequently  brought back by Lydia as
keepsakes, and now hang above two of the doors in the Library at Killerton
House.

The Aclands returned home i July (837, und Sir Thomas soon set about
trying to achieve a long held aim to build 4 cligpel near to Killerton House. The
project was to lake three years to reach [ruition, but on 21 September 1841 the
Killerton chaped, dedicated to the Holy Evangelists, was consecraled. The design
reflected Sic Thomas' religious teelings. which tried to balance the rigid
evangelical feanings of Lydia with the Tractarian influences of Keble, Puscy and
Newman.

Sir Thomas' second political term (1837-1848)

In 1837 Sir Thomas reached the age of fifty and felt ready for parliament again. A
seneral election was held following the death of William IV, and he was cleeted
as Tory MLP, for North Deven, i "which capacity he was to remain for the next
twenty years. The same clection brought s son, Tom, into the House as Member
for West Somerscl.

Eady Acland speat less time in London during her husband's second
parliamentary stint. Tom kept company with bis father and was seon clected to the
Grrillion's Club where his father was stitl o popular scerctary, Sir Thomnas
continued his predilection to speak on subjects with which he wag familiar and on
which he had a strong social conscience. Fle was passionately against the slave
trade. which had cost him the lives of o brother, Charles, amnd son, Charles

Baldwin. Both were naval officers who died from fever caught in the rescue of

slaves on the African coast. Hix missionary interests led him o join the African
Civilisation Socicty, which aimed to teach tanning skills to Africans so that they
did not need to rely on the profits ol sclling slaves.

Thomas Tellefsen establishes himself in Paris (1842-1847)
During Sir Thomas' sccond political term in England. s Norwegian namesake's
debut as a pianist fook place it his home ¢ity of Trondheim in January 1842 when
he was eighteen years of wge. However, in May ol the same year Thomas
Tellelsen moved o Paris where he became the pupi] of his compawiot Chadotte
Thygeson, He was clearly most determined to establish himsetf ag a pronunent
pianist, as instanced by the tetier he wrote on 4 October 1842:
D will tell you now Bow 1 spend my days: L mustarise at 7,00 and work without pause
until 1100, From 7.00 to .00 1 play the 3 notes and practise them, from &.00 to 2.00
Studes, fram 9.00 to 930 octaves, from 230 o 1000 the O major scale, guile slowly
and feetutly, from 10.00 to 1030 duedes onee again, and from 1030 10 1100
pelives ance again.... At 200 | commence playing once more, and play without
pause until G0 Lt s difficutt, and most likely not good for my health and my weak
32

chest, but one must mke the best use of one’s time, and i one is 1w pel anywhere, one

must work diligently and steachlastly. '

This great dedication 1o practice must have paid dividends. because a yewr
later he attended some of the classes of the renowned Freneh/German pianist,
teacher and composer Friedrich Kalkbremier, Flowever, his health became
sertously undermined, and in 1844 he had to spend several weeks in hospital
recovering fram paeumenia and rhewnnatic fever"!

in {844 he was introduced to Frédéric Chopin through Henrt de Latouche, a
literary man friendly with George Sand,”* and during the period 1844-1847
Thomas Tellelsen received three lessons per week from Chopin. He also appears
to have become one of the compaoscr's copyists.
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Book reviews

John and Margaret Folkes (2005) Exefer postcards, Stroud: Tempus; 128
pages, numerous illustrations, softcover, ISBN 0752434744, £12.99,

This book is one of a scrics, fmages of Eagland, and 15, in esseuce, a compilation
of over two hundred black-and-white reproductions of postcards belonging to
various members of the Excter Posteard Socicty. However, 1t is no merg picture
book. Each illustration is accompanied by a, so it ollen seems, well-rescarched
caption. Some of these could stand on their vwn. Rather than (ollow a
geographical or chronological classitication, or one bascd on the publisher or
photographer, a thematic approach is adopted. This brings the book beyvond onc of
interest primarily to the posteard collector into one that should attract the local
historian. The Brst scction is devoted to those pesteards of main appeal to the
tourist, rather than commemorating events of local tnterest. The subjects range
from the splendour of Exeter Cathedral to the apparently picturesque squalor of
early twentieth-century Stepeote Hill, The second, “Shops and shoppimg”, contains
many depictions of High Street before it succumbed to the ravages of the Second
World War and its aftermath. This is followed by picturex concerning 'Events,
entertamment and sport’, and then by those of various Excter educational
establishments and their pupils, The next section is perhaps of more general
interost and concerns not just personal fragedies, such ns the death of o local
woman in a tram accident, but alse all the citizens™ anguish over the carnage of
two world wars. The penultimate part of the book, 'Outsule the walls’, o1 first
sight gives the impression of a hotchpoteh of posteards difticult to it in elsewhere,
On the other hand, it draws attention to once independent commusitics now
*gobbled up’ by Exeter, The final section documents the events of 1903, a year
which the authors regard as marking a long awaited resurrection of civie pride.
The cvents depicted include the building of the iron Fxe Bridge. the arvival of the
electric tram, and the unveiling of the statue of a here of the Boer War,

The reviewer approached this book from two standpoints. Fistly, as a
postecard collector.” Sccunﬂly. as an amateur historian more competent at data
gathering ond descriptive narrative than at the professional business of analysis
and interpretation. Dertving from both of these. the reviewer has long-believed
that the posteard can sometimes provide an archival record compavable (o more
usual sources. As a collector, mixed feclings were aroused. Hnvy over many
posteards never before scen was balanced by the thought that the chase was still
worth it. [f only for the ravity of muny of the posteards reproduced, this is & book
for the collector, [t has to be said the historian will find little, it anything, in the
cuptions that could not be gleaned elsewhere, Nevertheless, there is ingstimable
value m matching prnt with picture. This book achieves this well. Above all, it
demonstrates that the “tourist trash’ postcard has come of age as a pictorial
histerical cecord.

This book can be highly recommended to all interested in Excter’s history in
particular and England’s social history in gencral. Individuals and librarians
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possessing earlicr compilutions of Exeter postcards need have uo reservations over
adding it to their bookshelves.
Setelar Blicanji

Helen Harris (2004) A handhook of Devan parishes, Tivevton: Halsgrove; 192
pages, 225 illustrations, havdeover, [SBN 1841143146, £19.95,

This book was written about fifiy years after W.( [osking published his
encyclopaedic evon, a seminal work that has remained as an unchallenged
authoritative histery of Devon. Hosking Dever consisits of two parts: the first is a
chronological essay on the county’s history while the second is a garcticer of the
vatious parishes, Mis Helen Harrts® work is an updated version of part 2 of
Hoskins, and she modestly acknowledges her debt to Hoskins, wreiting in her
introduction that his book has been her constant and cherished work ol veference
for ocavty halt o century. [n her book she seeks to follow a pattern similar o that
set by Hoskins. Both books identily the various parishes on a simple map with
squates biased on the British National Grid The text ol the handbook s an
updating of Hoskins™ gazetteer to the situation in 2004, and Harris has drawn on
Floskins® basic historical knowledge - to which she has added her own and that of
othiers, Detaits of voad accessibilitw, topography and generai information retating
ta the twenty-first cenlury such as railways, towns, villages, contemporary local
government areas and tilles, are added as completely new data. Haeis bas
included the population of parishes for 2001 as an addition to Hoskins™ data for
the period from SO to 1961, and perhaps a reprimt of data for the years between
1961 and 2001 might have been vseful tlusking noted thm o complete
bibliography of the sources of Devenshire history would “by itself Hli a substantial
volume', and Hamis has included some post-19507s Hiterature in a form entitled
Further reading’. She has also included local history societies and museums,
Many of her parish notes we accompanied by small menochreme photographs of
physical features; most of these are good but the reproduction of o Few could be
nuproved.

This book is obviously the result of much vescarch by Myes Harris, aud one
canmnt but envy her exploratory travels around the County o the “plorious
summer’ of 2003, 1t will be a useful source of reference for future works on the
county of Deven and its 422 parishes and other kger authorities.

DALE. Thomas

Jacqueline Sarsby (2004) Sweetstones: fife on ¢ Devon furm, Dartington:
Green  Books; 112 pages, uwumerous illustrations, hardeover, [SBN
1903998441, £14.95,

When | first saw this book, | was reminded of the timeless photographs of James
Ravilious and Cheis Chapman, and having vow read the book, and absorbed also
the evocative black and while images. my inlisd impression has been confirmoed.
This is 2 book of the highest quality. H Ravilious deserthes mid- and vorth-Devon,
and Chapman evokes Dartmoor, then Jacquehne Sarsby documents the South
Fams as its farming Nie changes from the tracitional farm to - who knows what?
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Like Chris Chapman, Sarsby - a social anthropologist - inmersed herself in her
subject aver a period ol soveral years, twelve in fact, lnking photographs of the
passing seasons, the animals and poultry, and the crops. The farming family are
Ihe Rowdons, comprising the brothers John and Wilfred, their mother M Eda
Rowden, and sister Phyllis. During the time the author was observing the farm,
both Mrs Rowdon and fohn Rowdon divd - Jobn suddenly while barvesting
mangolds. The way neighbours helped at his time i described in detail, and the
life of the local community as it went round this small farm of 153 acres is
heatitically described.

This is a most handsomely described book, beautifully written and a usefud
recordd of farmiing life at the o of the twenticth century. As an example of the
author’s delightlul prose style o fow sentences from the opening clupter must
sufhice.

Fleve there are no holtday cottages, no trowehs [led with bedding plants (o pleose the

vistlors, ar harns garaging powerlud cars just down for the weekend. Behind o wall,

the orehard is busy with calves and starry with phan-blossem, [or we are only o few
miles from Dittisham. the home of plins, A thin nop of grass has slipped under the
orchard gate, colonising the edge of the yard, and black hens flutter down to it
squawking as ey g . Several brown cows, the Somh Devons waditional 10 the
ared, Jook up from their pasture, Towards evening they will congregate at the botlon
of the teack untib il is ime o g in, eat a bit of bruised barley and hay, and suckte the
young catves, This is 2 working favm, atidy Bem, and g farm where the new and the
waditional exist side by side. The Rowdans have been here since 1955, Soanetimes
they have (klE the need to go with the tide in farming, b mechanise or Invest in o new
breed: sometimes they have pot, beconse m spite of all the pressures o conform, the

carrol and stick of subsidy, premium and queots, wnd the unconquerable mountain ol

paperwork, they have retained o certain independence ol spinit,

A lovely book, well worth inmersing oneselt in, written und iltustrated by a
true commuunicator,
frian le Messurivr
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Keith S. Perkins

With regret we record the death on [8 June 2005, after protracted illness, of Keith
Perkins, whose nqumereus articles, published in The Deven Historian from 1985-
93, will be recalled by many members.

Although living in Coventry, Keith knew Devon well. He had a deep interest
in incdusirial archacology. particularly in relation to civil engincering, and his
researches related notably to prajects that involved provision of mechanical means
of transport acress river estiaries. These included plans for early steam power
links between Devonport and Torpoint, and a fascinating account of Rendel’s
hydraulic drawbridee at Boweombe Creek near Kingsbridge.

Keith was a painstaking writer whose work always carried a personal touch.
We extend our condalenices o his two sons.

Helon Havris

Correspondence from members and other information

.
The Hon, Editor is pleased to receive notices coneerning museums, local societies
and organisativns, infornution about particular research projects, as well as notes,
queries and correspondency from Sociely members, Such items can be reproduced
in The Devon Historiun, spice permitting,

A murderced prince in Devon

The buildings of England: Devon (Bridget Cherry and Nikolaus Pevsner 1989
sccond edition: 274-3) deseribes the East window of the porth aisle of Coldridge
church as containing an “Early Ctée figure of a king... and a few other tiny
fragments.’

This information is enlarged upon in an article "The Prince and the Parker:
speculative essay on the Dvans chantry glasy at Coldridge, Deven and Tudor
propaganda’ by Chris Brooks and Martin Cherry in The Jowrnal of Stained Glass.
Volume XXV, 2002, The authors tdentify the king as Prince Hdward {son of
Edward [V), the elder of the two princes murdered in the Tower by Richard H,
and point out that this brings up to only five the number of contemparary or near
contemporary represemtations of Prince Edward. They also suggest that a fragment
of glass in the window may depict Richard U1 "uniquety and direetly as usarper,
holding before him the crown that he stede”, The article speculates mterestingly am
how these fragments of political and religious propaguands cume to be installed in
deepest rural Devon,

Anthony Greenstreet

Wembury Local History Society
The following speakers are scheduled 1o give talks to the Wembury Local [listory
Society:

20 Oct. 2005 Mr R. Sampson, ‘The village ot Loddiswell’

17 Nov.2005  Dr Todd Gray, ‘Lost Devon®

Meeting are normally held in the Knighton Room of the Wembury Mcnonat [Hail,
commencing 7.30pm. The Society’s FHon. Secrctary is Sue Johnston (01752
863252, laurenceclass@iaol .com).

Widecombe and District Local History Group

The following events have been organised by the Widecombe and District Local

History Group:

5 Qct. 2005 Cmdr Charles Crichton, ‘The history of Devenpurt Dockyard’

8 Qct. 2005 A day’s outing to Devonport Dockyard

2 Nov. 2005 Mike Wright, ‘Sclection of favourite slides of Dartmoor”

7 Dec. 2005 Dr Tom Greeves, ‘From China to Widecombe: (he exlraordinary
journey of the Three Hares',

Meetings are held at The Church House, Widecombe at 7.30pm. For further

information contact Tony Beard (01363 621246, tonyrewidecombe. [sneteg,uk)

Dartington Rural Archive
The Dartington Rural Archive (www.dartingtonruralarchive.ore.uk) has moved to
the Tourist [nformation Centre, Town Mill, Totnes. THY S13I.

Society reports and notices

Membership and subscriptions
The Society is pleased to attract the membership of focol hislory groups that are
not vet affiliated members. The first year of membership for an affilinted society
15 £5.00. Existing affiliated societies are reminded 16 comtuct the Hon, Treasurer,
whenever there is a change of contact and correspondence address: I Sadry
Bhanji, 13 Elm Grove Road, Topsham, Devon, EX3 BEQ.

Please note also that there is no longer a chavge lor access to the Devon
Record Olfice, so that the free aecess that used to be gained through membership
of the Society no longer applics.

Programnte organisation
The Committee of the Society is seeking a new Programme Sceretary, or help
from a couple of individuals who may like to share the work associated with this
pusition.  The main responsibilitics  of the Programme  Secretary are the
organisation of the Annual Conterence and AGM, and the Spring and Summer
meetings of the Society. The Committee would also welcome the help of any
affiliated societies that are able to host and organise one of the Society's Spring or
Suwmmer meetings.

Those nterested in contributing to programme organisation are asked to
approach the Hon. Sceretary ((1404 42002, su368 | @eclipse.co.uk).
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